MINUTES
CITY OF DARIEN
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING
January 16, 2019

PRESENT: Lou Mallers- Chairperson, Robert Cortez, Michael Desmond, Robert Erickson,
Brian Gay, Brian Liedtke, Mary Sullivan, Ralph Stompanato, Steven Manning -
City Planner, Bryon Vanna — City Administrator

ABSENT:  John Laratta

Chairperson Mallers called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. at the City Hall — City Council

Chambers, Darien, Illinois and declared a quorum present and swore in the audience members

wishing to present public testimony.

REGULAR MEETING:

A. Hearing
Case: PZC 2018-09 - 6710 Rt. 83 - (sign variation) Olympic Signs, as agent for the
owner of The Auto-Mobile Center of Darien, has petitioned for approval of a
variation to Section 4-3-16 of the Darien Sign Code to allow an electronic message
center on the ground sign at 6710 Rt. 83.

Mr. Steve Manning, City Planner reported that the petitioner and owner of The Auto-Mobile
Center on Route 83 is requesting a sign variation to the ground sign. He reported that the multi-
tenant shopping center is occupied by 3 businesses with a ground sign 29 feet by 10 feet
containing 7 panels one of which shows digital time and temperature. Mr. Manning reported that
the sign is approximately 80 feet from the edge of the pavement from Route 83.

Mr. Manning reported that the petitioner is proposing to cover the time and temperature panel at
the bottom of the sign and replace the top 2 panels with an electronic message center, 5’ by 10’
wide that would illuminate images of products or services that would remain static for 10
seconds and would not flash or chase and have limited brightness in the evening. He reported
that the existing sign does not conform to the Sign Code. He further reported that there are two
ground signs on the Willowbrook side of Rt.83 including Pete’s grocery store with an electronic
message center sign approximately 8’ by 8’.

Mr. Manning reported that the City granted a variation to Chuck’s Restaurant, and Our Lady of
Peace for a changeable electronic message sign conditions.

Chairperson Mallers opened the meeting to anyone wishing to present public comment.

Mr. Albert Santa Maria, Olympic Signs (Sign Contractor) reported that their proposed sign
would give tenants the ability to advertise to the car flow during the evening and morning traffic.
He reported that they have found that 10 seconds is appropriate to avoid too much flash. He
further reported that the lighting can be adjusted to tone it down or brighten it up and that the
sign would be turned off from 2:00 a.m. — 4:00 a.m.

Chairperson Mallers questioned if there would be text and photos.

1|Page



Mr. Santa Maria reported that the sign will have both and that the copy and photos would fade in
and out with the movement to a minimum.

Mr. Manning reported that the other two signs in Darien change every 60 seconds. He said that
the rate of image change should not be distracting to drivers. He further reported that other
message boards are about three feet off the ground.

Commissioner Desmond questioned if the lighting the portion closer to the ground is an option.

Mr. Santa Maria stated that there is mature landscaping with a hedge and trees in front of the
sign.

Commissioner Liedtke questioned if the petitioner could move up the 3 static panels to the top of
the sign and put the changeable image sign in the middle of the sign structure.

Mr. Santa Maria stated that they would have to reconstruct the sign and that it is a well-built sign
and still in good shape.

Mr. Robert Whitehead, the owner of the property stated that the proposed sign will catch a
driver’s peripheral and that they will be able to see it from a distance which is a safer way to see
from afar.

Commissioner Cortez questioned the legal non-conforming status.

Mr. Manning reported that the sign was built over 30 years ago and conformed to cod at that
time but that the code changed after it was built. He stated that the sign code had an amortization
clause, which required all non-conforming signs bed removed. However, that clause has been
deleted, so this sign can remain but not be enlarged.

Commissioner Liedtke questioned the business hours and if the petitioner was comfortable
turning the sign off at 11:00 pm and turning it back on at 7:00 am.

The petitioner stated that the area is zoned commercial and that the one neighbor has been there
for over 30 years and has never complained. He stated that he is proposing to pay for a sign for
the tenants for economic reasons. He further stated that all of the businesses are owner/operators
and that the sign will be a reminder to drivers sitting in traffic. The petitioner also stated that in
the 30 plus years that he has always been a good neighbor not posting flags, etc. and that this is
solely to help the tenants build up their businesses.

Commissioner Stompanato questioned if there would be any flashing advertising.

The petitioner stated that he preferred not to flash the sign and that it doesn’t do anyone any
good. He stated that he is trying to be classy.

Mr. Santa Maria stated that they would like to have a little action but prefer a fade but not
flashing. He stated that they will not have ticker tape movement.

Chairperson Mallers stated that the sign will help the businesses economically and that traffic
barely moves fast on Route 83.

2|Page



Commissioner Desmond stated that he is concerned with the height. He stated that the Pete’s
sign has the sign above and the changeable images below. He questioned if there is an
alternative to not putting the sign at the top. He further stated that he understands the need to
advertise but that the proposed image sign is not a necessity and that the petitioner has been there
for over 30 years.

Commissioner Liedtke questioned if there was a cost analysis done without the sign.

The petitioner stated that the tenants are paying one third less versus 30 years ago and that none
of them are original owners. He stated that he is paying out of pocket to help the businesses stay
afloat.

Commissioner Cortez stated that he is struggling with the upper tier and questioned why they
couldn’t put the sign where the Oil Express is and remove the shrubs.

The petitioner stated that it could be done but the sign will be further away. He stated that the
other two signs in town are right on the street and that he spent a lot of money on the landscaping
to hide the trucks and cars from the street to keep the area nice.

Commissioner Gay questioned if the sign lighting will be different.

Mr. Santa Maria stated that the lighting will be clearer with a crisper look and won’t carry any
more lumens.

Commissioner Sullivan questioned if the sign would illuminated all night.
There was no one else in the audience wishing to present public comment.

Commissioner Liedtke made a motion and it was seconded by Commissioner Gay to
approve the variation for an electronic sign with the conditions of no flashing or blinking
and with auto dimming and static color with slow motion with a minimum of 10 seconds to
help benefit the tenants and that the petitioner meets the State and City Criteria.

Upon roll call vote, THE MOTION FAILED 4-4.

AYES: Cortez, Gay, Liedtke, Mallers
NAYS: Desmond, Erickson, Stompanato, Sullivan

B. Public Hearing Case: PZC 2018-10-313 Roger Road-(lot width variation) Marius
Grigoras, as contract purchaser, has petitioned for approval of a variation to
Section 5A-7-2-5(A) of the Zoning Code that otherwise requires a 75 foot lot width
for a proposed house to be built on a vacant lot commonly known as 313 Roger
Road.

Mr. Steve Manning, City Planner reported that the petitioner would like to purchase the lot to
construct a single family home. He reported that the lot width is 70 feet measured on the
perpendicular to the side lot lines and the standard for lot width is 75 feet. He reported that a
house with the required 10 foot side setbacks would still be 50 feet wide and could be as much as
147 feet deep. Mr. Manning reported that the petitioner would prefer to front the house on Roger
Road.

3|Page



Mr. Manning reported that most of the lots in the neighborhood are 75 feet wide with some even
more narrow. He said that apparently this lot has never been built on before and was approved
prior to annexation.

Chairperson Mallers opened the meeting to anyone wishing to present public comment.

The petitioner, Mr. Marius Grigoras reported that he presently lives in Bensenville and would
like to build a two story house with a basement and attached garage for his family.

Commissioner Erickson stated that he believed there were a couple homes built recently on
Roger Road.

Mr. Manning reported that the newer houses are on wider lots and conformed to the code.
Commissioner Sullivan stated that the home would fit in with the area.

Commissioner Desmond questioned if anyone has tried to build on this lot.

Mr. Manning said no, not to his knowledge.

Chairperson Mallers stated that this has been a vacant lot for a number of years and will be an
improvement to the neighborhood. He reported that there were no comments from the
neighbors.

Commissioner Gay questioned if there any requests for curb cut on the back of the property.
Mr. Manning reported that there were not.
There was no one in the audience wishing to present public comment.

Commissioner Desmond made a motion and it was seconded by Commissioner Sullivan to
approve the variation for Section 5A-7-2-5(A) of the Zoning Code that otherwise requires a
75 foot lot width for a proposed house to be built on a vacant lot commonly known as 313
Roger Road and that the petitioner meets all the variation City and State Criteria
improving the character of the neighborhood.

Upon roll call vote, THE MOTION CARRIED 8-0.

Chairperson Mallers announced that this would be forwarded to the Municipal Services
Committee on Monday, January 28" at 6:30 p.m.

C. Public Hearing Case: PZC 2018-11 - Chemical Uses (zoning text amendment)
City of Darien has petitioned for approval of a text amendment of the Zoning Code,
Title 5A, Chapter 9: Office and Industrial Districts, Chapter 12: Performance
Standards, and Chapter 13: Definitions, regarding standards for chemical-related
uses and activities.

Mr. Steve Manning, City Planner reported that at the October 29, 2018 City Council Goal Setting
meeting the Council discussed land use regulation and oversight by the City Council. He
reported that the consensus of the Council was to review the City Code and recommend revisions
in land uses with goal of minimizing uses that may pose a hazard and requirements for public

4|Page



notification in a case of an EPA violation. He said that staff is hoping to get good input at these
hearings to help refine the text of the amendment.

Chairperson Mallers opened the meeting to anyone wishing to present public comment.

Mr. Ron Swanson, Cygnet Controls Inc. stated that he started his business in the 80s and that he
was next to Sterigenics. He stated that in the 90s they redeveloped the industrial park in Darien
that was proposed contaminated and it was cleaned up by Rockwell. Mr. Swanson stated that he
was concerned that light manufacturing was being considered eliminated. He displayed a
product of what he builds to the PZC and stated that he builds control panels and that the process
does not involve chemicals. He stated that his business has been in Darien since the 90s the
employees live in the community. Mr. Swanson stated that he was specifically referring to letter
h. of the document and that there are a lot of companies in Darien that fall under the same
category. He asked that the City not eliminate (h) in the list of permitted uses in the ORI district,
which includes ‘light industrial uses’.

Commissioner Desmond questioned if there is any industrial waste.
Mr. Swanson stated that he does not and in fact he has less than is what is in a home garage.

Mr. Manning stated that this request was initiated by the City Council to look at deleting uses
that have chemical processing or storage and to minimize such hazardous uses. He reported that
staff has put together a draft code amendment and that the process will take at least two hearings.
He explained that the text amendment identifies certain uses in the OR&I, Research and Light
Industry District limiting business process or land uses with chemical manufacturing classified
by Tier Il under the EPA. He stated that there is also language regarding storage.

Mr. Paul Schoenbeck, 1000 Frontage Road stated that elimination will hinder building owners
opportunity to secure tenants and that elimination will take the "R™ out of research and that the
City needs to look at this case by case. Mr. Schoenbeck stated that 31 properties in Darien is not
a lot and that this would create hardship for tenants and people to come into Darien.

Mr. Keith Lang, 8101 Clarendon Hills Road stated that he owns a building next to Ron and that
he agrees with Paul. He stated that he is concerned that his building rentals will decrease and
that the permit process involves review by the City and that case by case is a much better
solution.

Commissioner Desmond asked for an example so that he could better understand.
Mr. Lang stated that he has a tenant who has an auto body shop who does body work to cars
which requires paint and falls under warehousing. He stated that the general term warehousing is

a concern.

Commissioner Desmond stated that the concern is in tenants with strong chemicals that fall
within the Tier Il category.

Mr. Lang stated that the term is too broad and that the City cannot strike warehouse and
industrial.

5|Page



Mr. Schoenbeck stated that with restrictions the uses that are struck will make it difficult to rent
space. He stated that when realtors work to rent the space that they do not get into details and all
they will see is that warehousing will be out.

Mr. Josh Mallory, Miskatonic Brewing Company stated that nothing in the area comes close to
EPA Tier 1l. He stated that he reviewed the list and that there are uses that are struck that should
not be struck. Mr. Mallory stated that the City should require the business to identify if they fall
under Tier II.

Mr. Bryon Vana, City Administrator stated that he appreciated the discussion and that there were
a lot of good points. He stated that the process for regulating chemicals is above the
municipality and that a company is required to present material data sheets. Mr. Vana stated that
the City is looking at a broad range of uses instead of specifics.

Mr. Lang stated that the City does not have to eliminate anything but rather look at Tier Il. He
stated that it is too hazy and that eliminating Tier Il will require a business to go for a special use
permit.

Mr. Vana stated that he will discuss with the City Attorney to get more specifics.

Chairperson Mallers stated that the process is in motion and that there are a lot of moving parts..
Mr. Peter Friedman, Attorney representing Sterling Bay, 1035 S. Frontage Road stated that they
will submit written comments regarding the draft. He stated that he has extensive knowledge of
industrial zoning and applauded the City for modernizing the code. Mr. Friedman stated that he
will work with staff to provide Sterling Bay's proposal and that he liked the discussion regarding
eliminating certain chemicals.

There was no one else in the audience wishing to present public comment.

Commissioner Erickson made a motion and it was seconded by Commissioner Stompanato
to continue Public Hearing Case: PZC 2018-11 to the next regular meeting of the PZC on
February 6, 20109.

Upon roll call vote, THE MOTION CARRIED 8-0.

Mr. Manning stated that he welcomes any comments.

Commissioner Sullivan questioned if the businesses were notified.

Mr. Manning reported that a public notice is required for a Text Amendment and also the notice
was mailed as well to the 31 businesses in the ORI district.

CORRESPONDENCE
None

OLD BUSINESS

None

6|Page



NEW BUSINESS

Mr. Steve Manning, City Planner reported that the Municipal Services Committee reviewed the
Text and Variation Criteria and had little comment and that it will be go to the City Council for
final vote on January 21, 2019.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Commissioner Erickson made a motion and it was seconded by Commissioner Desmond to
approve the December 5, 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes.

Upon roll call vote, THE MOTION CARRIED 8-0.

NEXT MEETING
Chairperson Mallers announced that the next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, February 6th
at 7:00 p.m.

PUBLIC COMMENTS (On any topic related to planning and zoning)
There was no one in the audience wishing to present public comment

ADJOURNMENT

With no further business before the Commission, Commissioner Gay made a motion and it
was seconded by Commissioner Cortez. Upon voice vote, THE MOTION CARRIED
unanimously and the meeting adjourned at 9:00 p.m.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: APPROVED:
Elizabeth Lahey Lou Mallers
Secretary President

7|Page



